



Minutes for meetings

A guide to creating effective meeting minutes that are straightforward to write and easy to use.

Why are minutes important?

The minutes of a meeting are a basic record of important points that will be useful for the group to remember. For example, minutes could include the meeting date, names of people there, decisions reached and actions people said they would do.

Minute taking is often under-valued. However, it can make a massive difference to the effectiveness of your group's decision making! Creating good minutes doesn't need to be a daunting task. In fact, short, simple minutes are usually *more* useful than lots of detail.

Accurate, easy-to-read minutes can help by:

Providing a clear record of past decisions. This means the group doesn't need to waste time and effort revisiting conversations they've already had. This boosts morale, and frees up energy to do other things!

Enabling people to stay connected to the group if they can't attend a meeting. Anyone in the group can check what decisions they missed. This makes the decision making more transparent and inclusive.

Reminding people what they said they'd do. A clear list of tasks (with names and deadlines) also means the group can take more collective responsibility for things getting done. If a task isn't happening, everyone knows who to go to with a friendly reminder, an offer of help or whatever the occasion requires.

Supporting the facilitator during the meeting. When writing down a decision, the minute-taker can check their exact wording, to make sure everyone has the same understanding of what's being decided.

Otherwise, it is very common for people to go away with different interpretations of the discussion. If they are taking detailed notes, a minute-taker could also help remind people what's been said so far.

Taking useful minutes

The core task during the meeting is to create a record that will be useful to the members of the group straight after the meeting and in the longer term future. This is a very important role! Feel empowered to ask people to pause at any moment while you catch up. In particular, think about:

Are you really clear what's being said and decided? Feel free to stop someone and clarify what they mean before you write it down! Even more importantly, check the wording of a decision before you record it.

Is the group making clear decisions? In an informal meeting, it is common for an idea to get raised, and then the discussion moves on, without checking agreement. Often, in this situation, some people will think the idea is going ahead, and other people will forget about it. A minute-taker can help by noticing when this happens, and checking whether it is agreed and should be written down.

Are your minutes representing people's points fairly? If you aren't very conscious of what you're writing, you may find you mainly record the points you agree with, or focus on the opinions of people who are dominant in the group.

What to include in minutes

A question to guide you here is 'What will be helpful to the group afterwards?' If you aren't sure, ask. This may be different for each agenda item, so don't hold back from checking several times in the same meeting! For example, on a simple issue you might only record what you decided, on a controversial topic you might include your reasons. Minutes often include:

Date: to make it easier to find the minutes afterwards and pinpoint when decisions were made.

Names of the people present, the minute taker and of people sending in apologies. This provides clarity about who was involved in which

decisions. It also means that someone who missed the meeting knows who to ask about things they don't understand.

Brief explanation of each agenda item: this can help people who missed the meeting to understand the decisions made. This doesn't have to be the minute-taker's job! If people send agenda items electronically in advance of the meeting, they can include basic details to be copied and pasted into the minutes.

What you decided for each agenda item: this is the minimum information necessary in the minutes. It helps for the minute taker to read out what they are writing down, so everyone can check it is clear.

Reasons why you made the decision: this could be useful if you think people who missed the meeting might disagree. If you think the decision would be different in different circumstances, then having reasons can help you review in future. (E.g.: "We decided against the idea because we can't afford it currently, but have no objection in principle.")

Different views expressed: this can be time-consuming and isn't always necessary. However, it could be particularly useful if you were unable to reach a decision, and want to come back to it, without covering all the same ground. This could be a summary of key concerns, hopes and remaining questions at the end of a conversation, rather than everything that was said! If a decision goes ahead, but some people have reservations, they may feel more heard if these are recorded.

Action points - with deadlines and names! A shared record of action points means everyone knows who they need to check with if something isn't getting done. Plus, it provides a contact point if someone wants to offer help. Again - a minute taker can help the facilitator by noticing if an action point is mentioned but not allocated ("We agreed posters would be helpful, but we've not said who'll do them and by when.")

Date, time and location of next meeting to remind everyone, and make it easy for people who missed the meeting to stay in the loop.

Example minutes (extract)

Date: 12.02.2019

Present: Sam, Fatima, Deidre, Juan, Dimitri, Tracey (minute taker)

1. Evaluation of Saturday's outreach stall.

Good points: moving to Market Square helped - many more people spoke to us; several members of the public commented on banners and props - suggests visuals were effective.

Points for improvement: it takes a long time to fetch the stall stuff from whoever did it last, would be good to have it stored in town.

Decisions: Carry on having stall in Market Square. Investigate where we can store stuff in town.

Action point: Dimitri to call community centre to ask if they will store our stall materials. Deadline to feedback: next week's meeting.

2. Drafting a simple leaflet about our group

Summary of discussion: There were concerns that creating leaflets 'by committee' can be time-consuming. At the same time, it was important to lots of people that the leaflet was 'right', we all want some input.

Decision: The leaflet should be created by a small working group (Tracey and Fatima volunteered). They should get guidance from the main group on key messages, audience, length and printing costs. Some people would like a chance to feedback on an early draft.

Action point: Working Group to contact printers to establish options and prices; come up with a suggested process for drafting leaflet (noting points raised in 'summary of discussion' above). Deadline next meeting.

3. Next meeting

Mon 19th February, 7pm, back room of Pedallers' Cafe. (NB: contact luan for questions about the accessibility of the venue).

Tasks for after the meeting

Making the minutes easy for everyone to use after the meeting is about as important as writing them down in the first place! If you won't have time for all these steps you could ask for someone else to finish off.

Step one: 'Tidy' them up

This may start with typing them up if they were hand-written. Check that they are easy to use, for example:

Language: use words that are simple and clear, rather than jargon, unexplained acronyms or academic words.

Layout: it should be simple to pick out the main points. Try using bold or a different colour for decisions and action points. Give each agenda item a clear header. Even better, word processing programmes enable you to create a contents table out of these headers, so information is easy to find. Some people will find particular fonts and styles easier to read than others, so check with the group if they have preferences.

Clarity: check if the minutes contain enough information to make sense. Add a short explanatory sentence, or add attachments (e.g. the groups' accounts) or web links where people can get more information.

Keep them short, even if this means deleting some bits! Reading the minutes should not be an outfacing task.

Step two: Get other people to check they're accurate

Other people at a meeting might have understood some details differently from you, so it's good to let them check what you've written. One option is to email the minutes straight after the meeting to people who attended, so they can check how accurate they are. This method has advantages over the traditional method of approving minutes at the start of the next meeting, because, straight after the meeting, the discussion is still fresh in people's minds. Also, checking minutes electronically means

you don't have to use up time at the beginning of meetings.

Step three: Distribute

It is good to circulate the agreed minutes to the whole group as quickly as possible - this encourages people to get on to their action points, and makes sure announcements get out while they are still relevant. Sometimes you might choose to use several methods, e.g. sending minutes via the internal email list, adding them to an online file-sharing platform (and posting them to anyone who doesn't have the internet!)

Step four: Make key information accessible long term

To stress the point again - your minutes are only useful if people read them! As well as having minutes that record what was said in each meeting, you might copy some items and store them in a way that is easier to refer to long term. For example, a single 'long term decisions' document could list any decisions you may want to check back on in the future. An ongoing action points document everyone can access could enable you to delete (or tick off) completed tasks. This way, action points from previous meetings are still visible if they haven't been done.

One option is to keep these documents somewhere secure on the internet (e.g. a file-sharing site with a log in). If you have a shared room or building, you might use files and noticeboards for storing 'hard' copies.

Privacy and security

It is important that your minutes can be accessed by anyone in the group who needs to use the information. At the same time, you may need to be careful about confidentiality, data protection or group 'security' when circulating and storing minutes. For example, if you are part of a campaign group targeting a particular company, you might not want them to read what your strategy against them is!

You'll also need to comply with data protection laws (GDPR). For more on this see: www.resourcecentre.org.uk/information/data-protection-for-community-groups/

Meeting minutes

Clear, accurate minutes are crucial for a well-functioning, inclusive group. Having an easy-to-access record of your decisions and discussions means all group members can get the information they need. This puts everyone on a more equal footing: people can be fully involved without having to attend all your meetings, or keep loads of information in their head. Plus, it saves the whole group from revisiting old discussions, and helps people remember their action points!

This guide offers tips and suggestions to help you create informative, accessible minutes that are quick and easy to write.

A publication by

www.seedsforchange.org.uk

A workers' co-op of experienced campaigners offering training, facilitation and resources to help you confront injustices and build sustainable alternatives.

All Seeds for Change guides are anti-copyright. Feel free to copy, adapt, use and distribute them, as long as the final work remains anti-copyright.



Second edition published in 2019

Printed on recycled paper by Footprint Workers Co-operative